# Installation of Muffin Monster for the Pump Station in the Township of Galloway



Due Date: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 @11:00 am 300 E. Jimmie Leeds Road Galloway Township, NJ 08205

# **NOTICE TO BIDDERS**

Notice is hereby given that the sealed bids will be received by the Township of Galloway on **Wednesday**, **August 30**, **2023 @11:00 am** in the Office of the Township Clerk, 300 E. Jimmie Leeds Road, Galloway, NJ 08205, at which time and place responses will be opened and read aloud for: **Installation of Muffin Monster for Pump Station**.

Bid responses must be made on the standard bid forms and submitted in SEALED ENVELOPES addressed to: Galloway Township Clerk, 300 Jimmie Leeds Road, Galloway Township, NJ 08205 and clearly marked on the outside "Installation of Muffin Monster for Pump Station #23-002" All proposals/bids are to be submitted with one (1) original and one (1) copy.

All addendum will be issued on the website. Therefore, all interested respondents should check the website from now through bid opening. It is the sole responsibility of the respondent to be knowledgeable of all addenda(s) related to this procurement.

Specifications and instructions to bidders may be obtained at the Purchasing Office or through the Township website at <a href="https://www.gtnj.org">www.gtnj.org</a>.

Bidders shall comply with the requirements of N.J.S.A. 10:5-31 and N.J.A.C. 17-27 et seq.

Nina D. Williams, QPA Purchasing Agent

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

# Section 1 Introduction

Introduction Summary

Administrative Conditions and Requirements

Schedule

Township Representative for this Solicitation

Proposal Submission Information

Disclosure of Investment Activities in Iran & Russia-Belarus

Public Emergency

Subcontractors

Multiple Proposal Not Accepted

Force Majeure

Challenge of Specifications

Payment

Non Payment of Penalties and Interest on Overdue Bills

Source of Specifications/ IFB Packages

Altering Official Document

IFB Preparation of Forms

Qualifications

**Duration of Contract** 

# Section 2 Instruction to Bidders and Statutory Requirements

- I. Submission of Bids
- II. Bid Security and Bonding Requirements
- III. Interpretation and Addenda
- IV. Brand Names, Standards of Quality and Performance
- V. Insurance and Indemnification
- VI. Pricing Information for Preparation of Bids
- VII. Statutory and Other Requirements
- VIII. Method of Contract Award
- IX. Causes for Rejecting Bids
- X. Termination of Contract
- XI. Payment

Appendix A Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

Mandatory Equal Employment Opportunity Language

# Section 3 Specifications

Specification for Muffin Monster

Specification for Cutter Replacements (optional)

# TABLE OF CONTENTS Cont.

# Section 4 Required Documents to be submitted with Bid

Bid Document Check List

Proposal Page(s)

Acknowledgement of Addenda (If Applicable)

Exceptions

Hold Harmless Agreement

Stockholder Disclosure Certification (form must be notarized)

Non-Collusion Affidavit (forms must be notarized)

Bidders Affidavit (forms must be notarized)

List of Subcontractors (form must be notarized)

Disclosure of Investment Activities in Iran & Russia-Belarus

Affirmative Action Compliance

Disclosure Statement

Right to Extend

5 References

<sup>\*</sup> Bold items are mandatory

# Section 1 Introduction

# Introduction

The Township of Galloway, hereafter "Township" is requesting bids from qualified vendors for Installation of Muffin Monster for the Pump Station as described herein. It is the Township's intent to establish an agreement with qualified vendor(s) for Installation of Muffin Monster for the Pump Stations throughout the Township of Galloway.

# Administrative Conditions and Requirements for Invitation for Bid (IFB)

The following items express the conditions and requirements of this IFB. Together with the other IFB sections, they apply to the IFB process, the subsequent contract, and project production. Any proposed change, modification, or exception to these conditions and requirements may be the basis for the Township to determine the proposal as non-responsive to the IFB and will be a factor in the determination of an award of a contract. The contents of the proposal of the successful respondent, as accepted by the Township, will become part of any contract awarded as a result of this IFB.

# **Schedule:**

# Below are the dates for the release of IFB, proposal review, evaluation review and award:

1.	Release of IFB	Thursday, August 17, 2023
2.	Q & A	Tuesday, August 22, 2023 (deadline at noon)
3.	Proposal Due Date	Wednesday, August 30, 2023 @ 11:00 AM
4.	<b>Evaluation Completion Date</b>	Thursday, September 1, 2023
5.	Governing Body Action	Tuesday, September 12, 2023
6.	Contract Commence Date	October 1, 2023

# **Township Representative for this Solicitation**

Questions regarding this IFB should be submitted in writing to Nina D. Williams, Purchasing Agent via email to <a href="mailto:nwilliams@gtnj.org">nwilliams@gtnj.org</a> no later than Tuesday, August 22, 2023 noon. Please note the aforementioned contact is authorized only to direct the attention of prospective respondent to various portions of the requirements so that they may read and interpret each portion for themselves. <a href="Mode employee">NO</a> employee of the Township is authorized to give interpretations of any portion of the IFB or to give information as to the requirements for the IFB in addition to that already contained in the IFB unless as a formal addenda.

Interpretations of the IFB or additional information as to its requirements, when necessary, shall be communicated to prospective respondents only by written addendum issued by the Purchasing Agent of the Township of Galloway.

When submitting questions, please put the company name, phone number, email address and IFB Project name on the request.

# **Bid Submission Information**

One (1) Original signed in ink and One (1) copy.

Clearly marked on the sealed envelope the Title of the bid, name of responding firm and addressed to the Township Clerk, 300 E. Jimmie Leeds Road, Galloway Township, NJ 08205. The original proposal shall be signed in ink and marked to distinguish it from the one (1) copy. Faxed proposals will not be accepted.

# Disclosure of Investment Activities in Iran & Russia-Belarus

P.L. 2012, c.25 prohibits State and local public contracts with persons or entities engaging in certain investment activities in energy or finance sectors of Iran. Bidders must indicate if they comply with the law by certifying the form.

# **Public Emergency**

In the event of a Public Emergency declared at the Local, State or Federal Level, if the Township opts to extend terms and conditions of the IFB; the contractor agrees to extend the terms and conditions of this IFB, whether existing, expiring or expired no longer than six months, for goods and/or services for the duration of the emergency. In the event the original contractor cannot meet this requirement, the Township may solicit the goods and/or services from any respondent on this contract.

# **Subcontractors**

The Township will consider the primary contractor to be the sole point of contact with regard to contract matters. The primary contractor will be required to assume sole responsibility for delivery of all services.

# **Multiple Proposals Not Accepted**

More than one proposal from an individual, a firm or partnership, a corporation or association under the same name shall not be considered.

# Force Majeure

Neither party shall be responsible for any resulting loss nor obligation to fulfill duties as specified in any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement. If the fulfillment of any term or provision of this Agreement is delayed or prevented by any revolutions, insurrections, riots, wars, acts of enemies, national emergencies, strikes, floods, fires, acts of God, or by any cause not within the control of the party whose performance is interfered with which by the exercise of reasonable diligence such part is unable to prevent. Additionally, if the fulfillment of any of the terms and provisions of the Agreement is delayed or prevented by any court order, or action or injunction or other such agreement, this Agreement shall become voidable by the Township by notice to each party.

The terms of the Agreement shall be construed and interpreted, and all respective rights and duties of the parties shall be governed by the laws of the State of New Jersey.

# **Challenge of Specifications**

Any respondent who wishes to challenge a specification shall file such challenge in writing with the Purchasing Agent no less than three (3) business days prior to the opening of the IFB's.

Challenges filed after that time shall be considered void and having no impact on the Township or the award of contract.

# **Payment**

Invoices shall be submitted and must specify, in detail, the period for which payment is claimed, the services performed during the prescribed period, the amount claimed and correlation between the services rendered, and all backup documentation (time logs, receipts, etc.).

# Non Payment of Penalties and Interest on Overdue Bills

Public funds may be used to pay only for goods delivered or services rendered. The Township will not pay penalties and/or interest on overdue bills. No employee is authorized to sign a letter of credit or any other document/application that represents a legal commitment on the part of the Township to pay additional fees.

# Source of specifications/ IFB Packages

Official Township Request for Proposal packages are available on the Township's website: <a href="www.gtnj.org">www.gtnj.org</a> at no cost to the prospective respondents. All addenda are posted on the site. Potential respondents are cautioned that they are responding at their own risk if a third party supplied the specifications that may or may not be complete. The Township is not responsible for third party supplied IFB Documents.

# **Altering Official Document**

Respondents shall not write in any margins or alter the official content of the Township's IFB Documents.

# **IFB Preparation of Forms**

Documents must be signed in ink by the respondent. No pencil notations will be accepted. All quotations shall be made with a typewriter, computer or pen and ink. Any notations showing any erasure alteration must be initialed by the respondent in ink. Unit prices and totals are to be inserted in the spaces provided.

# **Qualifications**

It shall be necessary for the bidder to present evidence/documentation that he/she is in the <u>Installation of Muffin Monster</u> business and that he/she has been in business for at least <u>5</u> years in this particular field, and can submit a suitable record of satisfactorily completing similar projects. In addition to the above he/she shall submit evidence that his/her company has the necessary equipment to carry out this type of operation.

# **Duration of Contract**

The duration of the contract shall be for one (1) year with a  $2^{nd}$  and  $3^{rd}$  year renewal option at the discretion of the Township of Galloway and contingent upon availability of funding.

# Section 2 Instruction to Bidders and Statutory Requirements

# I. SUBMISSION OF BIDS

- A. Sealed bids shall be received by the contracting unit, hereinafter referred to as "Township of Galloway," in accordance with public advertisement as required by law, with a copy of said notice being attached hereto and made a part of these specifications.
- B. Sealed bids will be received by the designated representative on *Wednesday, August 30, 2023* @11:00 am, 300 E. Jimmie Leeds Road, Galloway Township, NJ 08205 as stated in the Notice to Bidders, and at such time and place will be publicly opened and read aloud.
- C. The bid shall be submitted in a sealed envelope: (1) addressed to the Township, (2) bearing the name and address of the bidder written on the face of the envelope, and (3) clearly marked "BID" with the contract title and/or bid # of the contract being bid.
- D. It is the bidder's responsibility that bids are presented to the Township at the time and at the place designated. Bids may be hand delivered or mailed; however, the Township disclaims any responsibility for bids forwarded by regular or overnight mail. If the bid is sent by express mail service, the designation in sub-section C, above, must also appear on the outside of the express mail envelope. Bids received after the designated time and date will be returned unopened.
- E. Sealed bids forwarded to the Township before the time of opening of bids may be withdrawn upon written application of the bidder who shall be required to produce evidence showing that the individual is or represents the principal or principals involved in the bid. Once bids have been opened, they shall remain firm for a period of sixty (60) calendar days.
- F. All prices and amounts must be written in ink or preferably machine-printed. Bids containing any conditions, omissions, unexplained erasures or alterations, items not called for in the bid proposal form, attachment of additive information not required by the specifications, or irregularities of any kind, may be rejected by the Township. Any changes, whiteouts, strikeouts, etc. in the bid must be initialed in ink by the person signing the bid.
- G. Each bid proposal form must give the full business address, business phone, fax, e-mail if available, the contact person of the bidder, and be signed by an authorized representative as follows:
  - Bids by partnerships must furnish the full name of all partners and must be signed in the partnership name by one of the members of the partnership or by an authorized representative, followed by the signature and designation of the person signing.
  - Bids by corporations must be signed in the legal name of the corporation, followed by the name of the State in which incorporated and must contain the signature and designation of the president, secretary or other person authorized to bind the corporation in the matter.
  - Bids by sole-proprietorship shall be signed by the proprietor.
  - When requested, satisfactory evidence of the authority of the officer signing shall be furnished.

Bidder should be aware of the following statutes that represent "Truth in Contracting" laws:

• N.J.S.A. 2C:21-34, et seq. governs false claims and representations by bidders. It is a serious crime for the bidder to knowingly submit a false claim and/or knowingly make material misrepresentation.

- N.J.S.A. 2C:27-10 provides that a person commits a crime if said person offers a benefit to a public servant for an official act performed or to be performed by a public servant, which is a violation of official duty.
- N.J.S.A. 2C:27-11 provides that a bidder commits a crime if said person, directly or indirectly, confers or agrees to confer any benefit not allowed by law to a public servant.
- Bidder should consult the statutes or legal counsel for further information.

# II. BID SECURITY AND BONDING REQUIREMENTS

The following provisions if indicated by an (X), shall be applicable to this bid and be made a part of the bid documents:

# □ A. BID GUARANTEE (NO BID GUARANTEE REQUIRED FOR THIS BID)

Bidder shall submit with the bid a certified check, cashier's check or bid bond in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the total price bid, but not in excess of \$20,000, payable unconditionally to the Township. When submitting a Bid Bond, it shall contain Power of Attorney for full amount of Bid Bond from a surety company authorized to do business in the State of New Jersey and acceptable to the Township. The check or bond of the unsuccessful bidder(s) shall be returned pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-24a. The check or bond of the bidder to whom the contract is awarded shall be retained until a contract is executed and the required performance bond or other security is submitted. The check or bond of the successful bidder shall be forfeited if the bidder fails to enter into a contract pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-21.

Failure to submit a bid guarantee shall result in rejection of the bid.

# □B. CONSENT OF SURETY

Bidder shall submit with the bid a Certificate (Consent of Surety) with Power of Attorney for full amount of bid price from a Surety Company authorized to do business in the State of New Jersey and acceptable to the Township stating that it will provide said bidder with a Performance Bond in the full amount of the bid. This certificate shall be obtained in order to confirm that the bidder to whom the contract is awarded will furnish Performance and Payment Bonds from an acceptable surety company on behalf of said bidder, any or all subcontractors or by each respective subcontractor or by any combination thereof which results in performance security equal to the total amount of the contract, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-22.

Failure to submit a consent of surety form shall result in rejection of the bid.

## □C. PERFORMANCE BOND

Bidder shall simultaneously with the delivery of the executed contract, submit an executed bond in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the acceptable bid as security for the faithful performance of this contract.

The performance bond provided shall not be released until final acceptance of the whole work and then only if any liens or claims have been satisfied. The surety on such bond or bonds shall be a duly authorized surety company authorized to do business in the State of New Jersey pursuant to N.J.S.A. 17:31-5.

Failure to submit this with the executed contract shall be cause for declaring the contract null and void pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-22.

# □D. LABOR AND MATERIAL (PAYMENT) BOND

Bidder shall with the delivery of the performance bond submit an executed payment bond to guarantee payment to laborers and suppliers for the labor and material used in the work performed under the contract. Failure to submit a labor and material bond with the performance bond shall be cause for declaring the contract null and void.

# □E. MAINTENANCE BOND

Upon acceptance of the work by the Township, the contractor shall submit a maintenance bond
(N.J.S.A. 40A:11-16.3) in an amount not to exceed% of the project costs guaranteeing against
defective quality of work or materials for the period of:
1 year
2 years

# III. INTERPRETATION AND ADDENDA

- A. The bidder understands and agrees that its bid is submitted on the basis of the specifications prepared by the Township. The bidder accepts the obligation to become familiar with these specifications.
- B. Bidders are expected to examine the specifications and related bid documents with care and observe all their requirements. Ambiguities, errors or omissions noted by bidders should be promptly reported in writing to the appropriate official. Any prospective bidder who wishes to challenge a bid specification shall file such challenges in writing with the contracting agent no less than three business days prior to the opening of the bids. Challenges filed after that time shall be considered void and having no impact on the contracting unit or the award of a contract pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-13. In the event the bidder fails to notify the Township of such ambiguities, errors or omissions, the bidder shall be bound by the requirements of the specifications and the bidder's submitted bid.
- C. No oral interpretation and or clarification of the meaning of the specifications for any goods and services will be made to any bidder. Such request shall be in writing, addressed to the Township's representative stipulated in the specification. In order to be given consideration, a written request must be received at least seven (7) business days prior to the date fixed for the opening of the bid for goods and services.

All interpretations, clarifications and any supplemental instructions will be in the form of written addenda to the specifications, and will be distributed to all prospective bidders. All addenda so issued shall become part of the specification and bid documents, and shall be acknowledged by the bidder in the bid. The Township's interpretations or corrections thereof shall be final.

When issuing addenda, the Township shall provide required notice prior to the official receipt of bids to any person who has submitted a bid or who has received a bid package pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-23c.1.

# D. Discrepancies in Bids

1. If the amount shown in words and its equivalent in figures do not agree, the written words shall be binding. Ditto marks are not considered writing or printing and shall not be used.

2. In the event that there is a discrepancy between the unit prices and the extended totals, the unit prices shall prevail. In the event there is an error of the summation of the extended totals, the computation by the Township of the extended totals shall govern.

# E. Pre-Bid Conference

If stated in the Notice to Bidders:

**X** A Pre-Bid Conference is not required for this bid.

# IV. BRAND NAMES, STANDARDS OF QUALITY AND PERFORMANCE

- A. Brand names and/or descriptions used in these specifications are to acquaint bidders with the types of goods and services desired and will be used as a standard by which goods and services offered as equivalent will be evaluated.
- B. Variations between the goods and services described and the goods and services offered are to be fully identified and described by the bidder on a separate sheet and submitted with the bid proposal form. Vendor literature WILL NOT suffice in explaining exceptions to these specifications. In the absence of any exceptions by the bidder, it will be presumed and required that the goods and services as described in the bid specification be provided or performed.
- C. It is the responsibility of the bidder to document and/or demonstrate the equivalency of the goods and services offered. The Township reserves the right to evaluate the equivalency of the goods and services.
- D. In submitting its bid, the bidder certifies that the goods and services to be furnished will not infringe upon any valid patent or trademark and that the successful bidder shall, at its own expense, defend any and all actions or suits charging such infringement, and will save the Township harmless from any damages resulting from such infringement.
- E. Only manufactured and farm products of the United States, wherever available, shall be used pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-18.
- F. The contractor shall guarantee any or all goods and services supplied under these specifications. Defective or inferior goods shall be replaced at the expense of the contractor. The contractor will be responsible for return freight or restocking charges.

# V. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

The insurance documents indicated by an (X) shall include but are not limited to the following coverage's.

# A. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

# X 1. Worker's Compensation Insurance

Worker's Compensation insurance shall be maintained in full force during the life of the contract, covering all employees engaged in performance of the contract pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:15-12(a) and N.J.A.C. 12:235-1.6.

# **X** 2. General Liability Insurance

General Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of no less than \$1,000,000.00 any one person and \$1,000,000.00 any one accident for bodily injury and \$1,000,000.00 aggregate for property damage, and shall be maintained in full force during the life of the contract.

# **X** 3. Automotive Liability Insurance

Automotive Liability insurance covering contractor for claims arising from owned, hired and non-owned vehicles with limits of no less than \$500,000.00 any one person and \$1,000,000.00 any one accident for bodily injury and \$1,000,000.00 each accident for property damage, shall be maintained in full force during the life of the contract.

□4.	□ 4. Other Forms Of Insurance Required								
-									
-									
_									

# B. CERTIFICATES OF THE REQUIRED INSURANCE

Certificates of Insurance for those policies required above shall be submitted with the contract. Such coverage shall be with an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of New Jersey and shall name the Township as an additional insured.

Self-insured contractors shall submit an affidavit attesting to their self-insured coverage and shall name the Township as an additional insured.

# X C. INDEMNIFICATION

Bidder shall indemnify and hold harmless the Township from all claims, suits or actions, and damages or costs of every name and description to which the Township may be subjected or put by reason of injury to the person or property of another, or the property of the Township, resulting from negligent acts or omissions on the part of the contractor, the contractor's agents, servants or subcontractors in the delivery of goods and services, or in the performance of the work under the contract.

# VI. PRICING INFORMATION FOR PREPARATION OF BIDS

- A. The Township is exempt from any local, state or federal sales, use or excise tax.
- B. Estimated Quantities (Open-End Contracts): The Township has attempted to identify the item(s) and the estimated amounts of each item bid to cover its requirements; however, past experience shows that the amount ordered may be different than that submitted for bidding. The right is reserved to decrease or increase the quantities specified in the specifications pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:30-11.2 and 11.10. NO MINIMUM PURCHASE IS IMPLIED OR GUARANTEED.
- C. Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining any applicable permits or licenses from any government entity that has jurisdiction to require the same. All bids submitted shall have included this cost.

D. Bidders shall insert prices for furnishing goods and services required by these specifications. Prices shall be net, including any charges for packing, crating, containers, etc. All transportation charges shall be fully prepaid by the contractor, F.O.B. destination and placement at locations specified by the Township. As specified, placement may require inside deliveries. No additional charges will be allowed for any transportation costs resulting from partial shipments made for the contractor's convenience.

# VII. STATUTORY AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS

The following are mandatory requirements of this bid and contract.

# A. MANDATORY AFFIRMATIVE ACTION CERTIFICATION

No firm may be issued a contract unless it complies with the affirmative action provisions of N.J.S.A. 10:5-31 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 17:27-1 et seq. The following information summarizes the full, required regulatory text, which is included as Exhibit A of this bid specification.

1. Goods and Services (including professional services) Contracts

Each contractor shall submit to the public agency, after notification of award but prior to execution of a goods and services contract, one of the following three documents:

- i. A photocopy of a valid letter that the contractor is operating under an existing Federally approved or sanctioned affirmative action program (good for one year from the date of the letter); or
- ii. A photocopy of a Certificate of Employee Information Report approval, issued in accordance with N.J.A.C. 17:27-4; or
- iii. A photocopy of an Employee Information Report (Form AA 302) provided by the Division and distributed to the public agency to be completed by the contractor in accordance with N.J.A.C. 17:27-4.

## 2. Maintenance/Construction Contracts

After notification of award, but prior to signing the contract, the contractor shall submit to the public agency compliance officer and the Division of Contract Compliance and Equal Employment Opportunity in Public Contracts (Division) an initial project workforce report (Form AA201) provided to the public agency by the Division for distribution to and completion by the contractor, in accordance with N.J.A.C. 17:27-7.

The contractor shall also submit a copy of the Monthly Project Workforce Report once a month thereafter for the duration of the contract to the Division and to the public agency compliance officer. The contractor shall also cooperate with the public agency in the payment of budgeted funds, as is necessary, for on-the job and/or off-the-job programs for outreach and training of minorities and women.

# B. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990

Discrimination on the basis of disability in contracting for the purchase of goods and services is prohibited. Bidders are required to read Americans With Disabilities language that is included as

Appendix A of this specification and agree that the provisions of Title II of the Act are made a part of the contract. The contractor is obligated to comply with the Act and to hold the Township harmless.

### C. STOCKHOLDER DISCLOSURE

N.J.S.A. 52:25-24.2 provides that no corporation or partnership shall be awarded any contract for the performance of any work or the furnishing of any goods and services, unless, prior to the receipt of the bid or accompanying the bid of said corporation or partnership, bidders shall submit a statement setting forth the names and addresses of all stockholders in the corporation or partnership who own ten percent or more of its stock of any class, or of all individual partners in the partnership who own a ten percent or greater interest therein. The included Statement of Ownership shall be completed and attached to the bid proposal. This requirement applies to all forms of corporations and partnerships, including, but not limited to, limited partnerships, limited liability corporations, limited liability partnerships and Subchapter S corporations. Failure to submit a stockholder disclosure document shall result in rejection of the bid.

### D. PROOF OF BUSINESS REGISTRATION

N.J.S.A. 52:32-44 requires that each bidder (contractor) submit proof of business registration with the bid proposal. Proof of registration shall be a copy of the bidder's Business Registration Certificate (BRC). A BRC is obtained from the New Jersey Division of Revenue. Information on obtaining a BRC is available on the internet at <a href="www.nj.gov/njbgs">www.nj.gov/njbgs</a> or by phone at (609) 292-1730. N.J.S.A. 52:32-44 imposes the following requirements on contractors and all subcontractors that <a href="knowingly">knowingly</a> provide goods or perform services for a contractor fulfilling this contract:

- 1) The contractor shall provide written notice to its subcontractors and suppliers to submit proof of business registration to the contractor;
- 2) Prior to receipt of final payment from a contracting agency, a contractor must submit to the contacting agency an accurate list of all subcontractors or attest that none was used;
- 3) During the term of this contract, the contractor and its affiliates shall collect and remit, and shall notify all subcontractors and their affiliates that they must collect and remit to the Director, New Jersey Division of Taxation, the use tax due pursuant to the Sales and Use Tax Act, (N.J.S.A. 54:32B-1 et seq.) on all sales of tangible personal property delivered into this State.

A contractor, subcontractor or supplier who fails to provide proof of business registration or provides false business registration information shall be liable to a penalty of \$25 for each day of violation, not to exceed \$50,000 for each business registration not properly provided or maintained under a contract with a contracting agency. Information on the law and its requirements is available by calling (609) 292-1730.

# If boxes of the following items are checked, they are mandatory requirements of the bid proposal and contract.

# $\ \square$ E. NEW JERSEY WORKER AND COMMUNITY RIGHT TO KNOW ACT

The manufacturer or supplier of chemical substances or mixtures shall label them in accordance with the N.J. Worker and Community Right to Know Law (N.J.S.A. 34:5A-1 et seq., and N.J.A.C 8:59-2 et seq.,). Containers that the law and rules require to be labeled shall show the Chemical Abstracts Service number of all the components and the chemical name. Further, all applicable Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) - hazardous substance fact sheet - must be furnished.

# ☐ F. PREVAILING WAGE ACT

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.25 et seq., contractors on projects for public work shall adhere to all requirements of the New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act. The contractor shall be required to submit a certified payroll record to the Township within ten (10) days of the payment of the wages. The contractor is also responsible for obtaining and submitting all subcontractors' certified payroll records within the aforementioned time period. The contractor shall submit said certified payrolls in the form set forth in N.J.A.C. 12:60-6.1(c). It is the contractor's responsibility to obtain any additional copies of the certified payroll form to be submitted by contacting the New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce Development, Division of Workplace Standards. Additional information is available at <a href="https://www.state.nj.us/labor/lsse/lspubcon.html">www.state.nj.us/labor/lsse/lspubcon.html</a>.

# ☐ G. THE PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION ACT

N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.48 et seq. requires that a general or prime contractor and any listed subcontractors named in the contractor's bid proposal shall possess a certificate *at the time the bid proposal is submitted*. After bid proposals are received and prior to award of contract, the successful contractor shall submit a copy of the contractor's certification along with those of all listed subcontractors. All non-listed subcontractors and lower tier subcontractors shall be registered prior to starting work on the project. It is the general contractor's responsibility that all non-listed sub-contractors at any tier have their certificate prior to starting work on the job.

Under the law a "contractor" is "a person, partnership, association, joint stock company, trust, corporation or other legal business entity or successor thereof who enters into a contract" which is subject to the provisions of the New Jersey Prevailing Wage Act [N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.25, et seq.] It applies to contractors based in New Jersey or in another state.

The law defines "public works projects" as contracts for "public work" as defined in the Prevailing Wage statute [N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.26(5)]. The term means:

- Construction, reconstruction, demolition, alteration, or repair work, or maintenance work, including painting and decorating, done under contract and paid for in whole or in part out of the funds of a public body, except work performed under a rehabilitation program.
- "Public work" shall also mean construction, reconstruction, demolition, alteration, or repair work, done on any property or premises, whether or not the work is paid for from public funds...
- "Maintenance work" means the repair of existing facilities when the size, type or extent of such facilities is not thereby changed or increased. While "maintenance" includes painting and decorating and is covered under the law, it does not include work such as routine landscape maintenance or janitorial services.

To register, a contractor must provide the State Department of Labor with a full and accurately completed application form. The form is available online at www.state.nj.us/labor/lsse/lspubcon.html.

N.J.S.A. 34:11-56.55 specifically prohibits accepting applications for registration as a substitute for a certificate of registration.

# ${f X}$ H. NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

The Affidavit shall be properly executed and submitted with the bid proposal.

### I. PAY TO PLAY

Starting in January, 2007, business entities are advised of their responsibility to file an annual disclosure statement of political contributions with the New Jersey Election Law Enforcement Commission (ELEC) pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:44A-20.27 if they receive contracts in excess of \$50,000 from public entities in a calendar year.

Business entities are responsible for determining if filing is necessary. Additional information on this requirement is available from ELEC at 888-313-3532 or at www.elec.state.nj.us.

# VIII. METHOD OF CONTRACT AWARD

- A. The length of the contract shall be stated in the technical specifications. Pursuant to requirements of N.J.A.C. 5:30-5.1 et seq., any contract resulting from this bid shall be subject to the availability and appropriation of sufficient funds annually. Please see Section X, Termination of Contract, Sub-section E, for additional information.
- B. If the award is to be made on the basis of a base bid only, it shall be made to that responsible bidder submitting the lowest base bid.
- C. If the award is to be made on the basis of a combination of a base bid with selected options, it shall be made to that responsible bidder submitting the lowest net bid.
- D. The Township may also elect to award the contract on the basis of unit prices.
- E. The form of contract shall be submitted by the Township to the successful bidder. Terms of the specifications/bid package prevail. Bidder exceptions must be formally accepted by the Township.

# IX. CAUSES FOR REJECTING BIDS

Bids may be rejected for any of the following reasons:

- A. All bids pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-13.2;
- B. If more than one bid is received from an individual, firm or partnership, corporation or association under the same name;
- C. Multiple bids from an agent representing competing bidders;
- D. The bid is inappropriately unbalanced;
- E. The bidder is determined to possess, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-4b, Prior Negative Experience; or,
- F. If the successful bidder fails to enter into a contract within 21 days, Sundays and holidays excepted, or as otherwise agreed upon by the parties to the contract. In this case at its option, the Township may accept the bid of the next lowest responsible bidder. (N.J.S.A. 40A:11-24b)

# X. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

- A. If, through any cause, the contractor shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner obligations under the contract or if the contractor shall violate any of the requirements of the contract, the Township shall there upon have the right to terminate the contract by giving written notice to the contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date of termination. Such termination shall relieve the Township of any obligation for balances to the contractor of any sum or sums set forth in the contract. The Township will pay only for goods and services accepted prior to termination.
- B. Notwithstanding the above, the contractor shall not be relieved of liability to the Township for damages sustained by the Township by virtue of any breach of the contract by the contractor and the Township may withhold any payments to the contractor for the purpose of compensation until such time as the exact amount of the damage due the Township from the contractor is determined.
- C. The contractor agrees to indemnify and hold the Township harmless from any liability to subcontractors/suppliers concerning payment for work performed or goods supplied arising out of the lawful termination of the contract by the Township under this provision.
- D. In case of default by the contractor, the Township may procure the goods or services from other sources and hold the contractor responsible for any excess cost.
- E. Continuation of the terms of the contract beyond the fiscal year is contingent on availability of funds in the following year's budget. In the event of unavailability of such funds, the Township reserves the right to cancel the contract.

# F. ACQUISITION, MERGER, SALE AND/OR TRANSFER OF BUSINESS, ETC.

It is understood by all parties that if, during the life of the contract, the contractor disposes of his/her business concern by acquisition, merger, sale and or/transfer or by any means convey his/her interest(s) to another party, all obligations are transferred to that new party. In this event, the new Township(s) will be required to submit all documentation/legal instruments that were required in the original bid/contract. Any change shall be approved by the Township.

- G. The contractor will not assign any interest in the contract and shall not transfer any interest in the same without the prior written consent of the Township.
- H. The Township may terminate the contract for convenience by providing 60 calendar days advanced notice to the contractor.

# XI. PAYMENT

- A. No payment will be made unless duly authorized by the Township's authorized representative and accompanied by proper documentation.
- B. Payment will be made in accordance with the Township's policy and procedures.

# APPENDIX A

# AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990 Equal Opportunity for Individuals with Disability

The contractor and the Township of Galloway, (hereafter "Township") do hereby agree that the provisions of Title 11 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (the "Act") (42 U.S.C. S121 01 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability by public entities in all services, programs, and activities provided or made available by public entities, and the rules and regulations promulgated pursuant there unto, are made a part of this contract. In providing any aid, benefit, or service on behalf of the Township pursuant to this contract, the contractor agrees that the performance shall be in strict compliance with the Act. In the event that the contractor, its agents, servants, employees, or subcontractors violate or are alleged to have violated the Act during the performance of this contract, the contractor shall defend the Township in any action or administrative proceeding commenced pursuant to this Act. The contractor shall indemnify, protect, and save harmless the Township, its agents, servants, and employees from and against any and all suits, claims, losses, demands, or damages, of whatever kind or nature arising out of or claimed to arise out of the alleged violation. The contractor shall, at its own expense, appear, defend, and pay any and all charges for legal services and any and all costs and other expenses arising from such action or administrative proceeding or incurred in connection therewith. In any and all complaints brought pursuant to the town Township ship's grievance procedure, the contractor agrees to abide by any decision of the towns Township hip which is rendered pursuant to said grievance procedure. If any action or administrative proceeding results in an award of damages against the Township, or if the Township incurs any expense to cure a violation of the ADA which has been brought pursuant to its grievance procedure, the contractor shall satisfy and discharge the same at its own expense.

The Township shall, as soon as practicable after a claim has been made against it, give written notice thereof to the contractor along with full and complete particulars of the claim, If any action or administrative proceeding is brought against the Township or any of its agents, servants, and employees, the Township *shall* expeditiously forward or have forwarded to the contractor every demand, complaint, notice, summons, pleading, or other process received by the Township or its representatives.

It is expressly agreed and understood that any approval by the Township of the services provided by the contractor pursuant to this contract will not relieve the contractor of the obligation to comply with the Act and to defend, indemnify, protect, and save harmless the Township pursuant to this paragraph.

It is further agreed and understood that the Township assumes no obligation to indemnify or save harmless the contractor, its agents, servants, employees and subcontractors for any claim which may arise out of their performance of this Agreement. Furthermore, the contractor expressly understands and agrees that the provisions of this indemnification clause shall in no way limit the contractor's obligations assumed in this Agreement, nor shall they be construed to relieve the contractor from any liability, nor preclude the Township from taking any other actions available to it under any other provisions of the Agreement or otherwise at law.

# **EXHIBIT A**

# N.J.S.A. 10:5-36 et seq. and N.J.A.C. 17:27 MANDATORY EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY LANGUAGE

# Goods, Professional Services and General Service Contracts

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable, will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or sex. Except with respect to affectional or sexual orientation and gender identity or expression, the contractor will ensure that equal employment opportunity is afforded to such applicants in recruitment and employment, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their age, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or sex. Such equal employment opportunity shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the Public Agency Compliance Officer setting forth provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to age, race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or sex.

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable, will send to each labor union or representative or workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be provided by the agency contracting officer advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under this act and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

The contractor or subcontractor, where applicable, agrees to comply with any regulations promulgated by the Treasurer pursuant to <u>N.J.S.A.10:5-36 et seq.</u> as amended and supplemented from time to time and the Americans with Disabilities Act.

The contractor or subcontractor agrees to attempt in good faith efforts to afford equal employment opportunities to minority and women workers consistent with Good faith efforts to meet targeted county employment goals established in accordance with **N.J.A.C.** 17:27-5.2, or Good faith efforts to meet targeted county employment goals determined by the Division, pursuant to **N.J.A.C.** 17:27-5.2

The contractor or subcontractor agrees to inform in writing appropriate recruitment agencies including, but not limited to, employment agencies, placement bureaus, colleges,

universities, labor unions, that it does not discriminate on the basis of age, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or sex, and that it will discontinue the use of any recruitment agency which engages in direct or indirect discriminatory practices.

The contractor or subcontractor agrees to revise any of its testing procedures, if necessary, to assure that all personnel testing conforms with the principles of job-related testing, as established by the statutes and court decisions of the State of New Jersey and as established by applicable Federal law and applicable Federal court decisions.

In conforming with the applicable employment goals, the contractor or subcontractor agrees to review all procedures relating to transfer, upgrading, downgrading and layoff to ensure that all such actions are taken without regard to age, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, marital status, affectional or sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, disability, nationality or sex, and conform with the applicable employment goals, consistent with the statutes and court decisions of the State of New Jersey, and applicable Federal law and applicable Federal court decisions.

The contractor shall submit to the public agency, after notification of award but prior to execution of a goods and services contract, one of the following three documents:

Letter of Federal Affirmative Action Plan Approval Certificate of Employee Information Report Employee Information Report Form AA302

The contractor and its subcontractors shall furnish such reports or other documents to the Division of Public Contracts Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance as may be requested by the office from time to time in order to carry out the purposes of these regulations, and public agencies shall furnish such information as may be requested by the Division of Public Contracts Equal Employment Opportunity Compliance for conducting a compliance investigation pursuant to <u>Subchapter 10 of the Administrative</u> Code at N.J.A.C. 17:27.

# Section 3 Specifications

# MUFFIN MONSTER® OPEN CHANNEL - HYDRAULIC GRINDER SERIES 30005

# (2-Inch Hex Design-Hydraulic 5HP)

# **PART 1 GENERAL**

# 1.1 SUMMARY

A. This section of the specification describes the grinder(s), power pack(s), and controller(s). The equipment shall be installed as shown on the plans, as recommended by the supplier, and in compliance with all OSHA, local, state and federal codes and regulations.

# 1.2 REFERENCES

- A. Grinder(s) shall, as applicable, meet the requirements of the following industry standards:
  - 1. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) A36: Carbon Steel Plate
  - 2. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) A536-84: Ferritic Ductile Iron Castings
  - 3. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) A48-83: Grey Iron Casting
  - 4. American National Standards Institute (ANSI) B16.42-1979, Class 150 Flanges
  - 5. American Iron and Steel Institute (AISI) 303 Stainless Steel
  - 6. American Iron and Steel Institute (AISI) 304 Stainless Steel
  - 7. American Iron and Steel Institute (ASI) 316 Stainless Steel
  - 8. American Iron and Steel Institute (AISI) 4130 Heat Treated Alloy Steel
  - 9. American Iron and Steel Institute (AISI) 4140 Heat Treated Alloy Steel
  - 10. American Iron and Steel Institute (AISI) 8620 Heat Treated Alloy Steel

- 11. American Iron and Steel Institute (AISI) 17-4 Stainless Steel
- 12. Society of Automotive Engineers (SAE) 660 Bearing Bronze
- B. Controllers shall, as applicable, meet the requirements of the following Regulatory Agencies:
  - 1. National Electrical Manufacturer's Association (NEMA) Standards
  - 2. National Electric Code (NEC)
  - 3. Underwriters Laboratory (UL and CUI)
  - 4. International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC)

# 1.3 DOCUMENTS

# A. Submittals

Supplier shall submit pdf copy of submittals. Submittals shall include equipment descriptions, functional descriptions, dimensional and assembly drawings, catalog data, and job specific drawings.

B. Operation and Maintenance Manuals.

The supplier shall provide one (1) Operation & Maintenance manuals. An electronic version shall be supplied to create additional copies. The manuals shall include equipment descriptions, operating instructions, drawings, troubleshooting techniques, a recommended schedule, and the recommended lubricants.

# 1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE

# A. Identification

- 1. Equipment shall be identified with a corrosion resistant nameplate affixed in a conspicuous location.
- 2. Nameplate information shall include manufacturer's name and address, equipment model number, and serial number.

### B. Manufacturer

- 1. Supplier shall have a minimum 30 years experience as a manufacturer of municipal waste water equipment and a minimum 5,000 prior installations of similar equipment.
- 2. Supplier shall provide a list of reference sites for similar equipment for verification by the Engineer or Owner's Representative.

- 3. Supplier shall conduct factory testing and verification of equipment prior to shipment.
- 4. Supplier shall have factory owned bi-coastal service centers.

# .C. Installation & Start-up

- 1. Supplier shall provide services of a factory trained representative to check installation and review start-up of equipment and controls.
- 2. Supplier Representative shall inspect and approve site installation and supervise a review of the operation of the equipment.
- 3. Supplier Representative shall provide training on operation and maintenance requirements of the equipment.

# 1.5 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

# A. Packaging

- 1. Containers or skids shall be constructed for normal shipping, handling, and storage.
- 2. Containers shall provide adequate protection for the equipment in a dry indoor environment between  $+40^{0}$  F ( $+4.5^{0}$  C) and  $+100^{0}$  F ( $+37.8^{0}$  C).

# 1.6 WARRANTY

Manufacturer's standard 12-month limited warranty shall be provided on equipment.

# **PART 2 PRODUCTS**

# 2.1 Manufacturers

- A. Grinder(s) and controller(s) shall be in accordance with these specification and plans and shall be supplied by one of the following manufacturers:
- 1. JWC Environmental, 290 Paularino Ave, Costa Mesa, CA 92626; Tel: 800-331-2277 www.iwce.com

JWC Environmental Series 30005-0018Dl Muffin Monster.

JWC Environmental Series HPA10504

Power Pack. JWC Environmental Series

PC2240 Controller.

- 2. Approved equal.
- B. Manufacturers requesting to be selected as an approved equal shall submit certified documentation including installation lists with phone numbers,

equipment drawings, flow performance curves, electrical schematics and cut sheets, 084M draft showing compliance with these specifications a minimum often (10) days prior to bid opening. Selected equipment manufacturers shall be added to the list of approved manufacturers.

C. Selected approved equal manufacturers shall conduct an onsite test within ten (10) days of installation demonstrating compliance with all areas of this specification.

# 2.2 Grinder

# A. General

Grinder shall reduce or shred influent solids for protection of downstream equipment. Grinder shall be two shafted design consisting of individual cutters and spacers of equal diameter on both shafts. Grinder shall have high flow or slotted side rails. Grinder shall have torque motor and hydraulic power pack.

# B. Components

- 1. Cutters and Spacers
- a. Cutting stack shall be a nominal height of 18 inches.
  - b. Cutter shall be an individual disk constructed of AISI 4130 alloy steel surface ground to thickness of .310-inches \*.000/-.001 (7.9 mm \*.000/-.003).
  - c. Cutters shall be heat treated to produce a hardness of 48-50 Rockwell C.
  - d. Cutters shall have 11 tooth cam shaped teeth. Tooth height shall not be greater than ½-inch (13 mm) above the root diameter of the cutter.
  - e. Spacers shall be an individual disk constructed of AISI 4130 alloy steel surface ground to a thickness of .319-inches +.OOI/-.OOO (8.1 mm +.003/-.000).
- f. Spacers shall have a hardness of 34-38 Rockwell C.
- g. Spacers shall have a smooth outside diameter with no tooth profiles.

# 2. Shafts

- a. Shafts shall be constructed from AISI 4140 alloy steel with a minimum tensile strength of 149,000 PSI (1,027 kPA).
- b. Shafts shall be measure a nominal 2-inches (51 mm) across flats of hex.
- c. Shafts shall be hardened to 38-42 Rockwell C.

# 3. Intermediate Shaft Supports

- d. Intermediate shaft supports shall be constructed of ASTM A351 stainless steel, AISI 174 stainless steel and SAE 660 bearing bronze.
- e. Shaft supports shall be lubricated with high temperature marine grade grease at the factory.
- f. Intermediate shaft supports shall provide additional support to the shafts during severe grinding demands.
- g. Intermediate shaft supports shall be provided only for cutter stacks of 40 inches (1016 mm) and greater.

# 4. Seal Cartridges

- h. Seal cartridges shall be rated to a maximum of 90 PSI (620 kPA).
- i. Seal cartridges shall not require flushing.
- j. Dynamic and rotating seal faces shall be constructed of tungsten carbide with 6% nickel binder.
- d. O-rings shall be constructed of Buna-N (Nitrile).
- e. Radial and axial loads shall be borne by sealed, oversized, deep-groove ball bearings.

# 5. Housings and Covers

a. Top cover and end housings shall be ASTM  $\land$ 536-84 ductile iron.

- b. Bottom cover shall be ASTM A36 steel.
- c. End housing shall have integral bushing deflectors to guide solids away from seal cartridges,
- d. End housings shall have directional flow arrows cast into external side wall.

# 6. Side Rails

- a. Side rails shall be ASTM A536-84 ductile iron.
  - b. Side rails shall have evenly-spaced horizontal slots to increase flow and decrease water head loss through the grinder. Slots shall only be located on the upstream or influent side of the rail and the effluent side of the rail shall be void of slots to allow for unobstructed flow.
  - c. Inside profile of the cutters shall be concave and follow the radial arc of the cutters.
  - d. Clearance between the outside diameter of cutters and concave arc of the side rail shall not exceed 5/16-inch (7.9 mm).

# C. Hydraulic Torque Motor

- a. Torque motor shall be manufactured by Parker Hannifin Corporation.
- b. Torque motor shall have a 29.1 in <sup>3</sup>/rev displacement.
- c. Torque motor shall be rated for 4350 max. psi (300 bar).

# B. Performance

- 1. Grinder shall be capable of processing 370 GPM.
- 2. Grinder shall provide peak shaft torque of 2,298 lb-in/hp (348 Nm/kW).
- 3. Grinder shall provide peak force at cutter tip of 991 lbf/hp (5,911 N/kW).

# 2.3 Hydraulic Power Pack

# A. General

Hydraulic power shall provide pressure and flow to the torque motor of the grinder. Power pack shall provide sensors and valves to control the pressure, temperature, and flow. Power pack shall include tank, pressure switches, directional control valves, pressure relief valves, pressure gauges, filters, pump, and motor.

# B. Components

# 1. Tank

- a. Reservoir shall be 16 inch (406 mm) x 16 (406 mm) x 15 inch (381mm) and hold 10 gallons (38 L) of hydraulic fluid.
- b. Reservoir shall have a level switch and sight.
- c. Reservoir shall be constructed of steel.

# 2. Pump

- a. Pump shall be a positive displacement type supplying 4.5 GPM (17 L).
- b. Pump shall be driven by a 5 HP (3.7 kW) TEFC electric motor manufactured by Baldor Electric Company.
- c. Inlet to pump shall have a suction strainer.
- d. Return line to pump shall have a replaceable high pressure filter assembly.

# 3. Control Devices and Indicators

- a. Relief valve shall be set 3,000 psi (20,690 kPa).
- b. Pressure Switch shall be set at 2,850 psi (19,655 kPa).
- c. Temperature switch shall be set at  $160^{0}$  F (7  $I^{0}$ C).
  - d.Directional control valve shall be two-port design with 110 volt coil.
  - e.Pressure gauge shall be 2-1/2 inch (64 mm) 0-5000 psi (34,450 kPa) oil filled.

# 4. Enclosure

- a. Enclosure shall be fiberglass reinforced polyester NEMA 4 rated.
- b. Enclosure shall contain terminal connections for pressure switch, level switch, temperature switch, and solenoid valve.

# 2.4 Hydraulic Hose and Fittings

# A. General

Hydraulic flexible hose and steel hydraulic fitting shall be used to connect between the power pack and the torque motor of the grinder. The hydraulic hose and fittings shall be sized in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations to maintain minimum pressure loss.

# B. Components

# 1. Hose

- a. Hose shall be <sup>1</sup>/2 inch (13 mm) rated for a minimum of 3,500 psi (24, 138 kPa) working pressure with a 14,000 psi (96,552 kPa) burst pressure.
- b. Hose shall have an operating temperature of  $-65^{\circ}$ F to  $+200^{\circ}$  F ( $-54^{\circ}$ C to  $+93^{\circ}$ 0.
- c. Hose shall be constructed of thermoplastic polyester tube, single braid Kevlar reinforcement, and a black perforated polyurethane cover.

# 2. Fittings

a. Fittings shall be SAE 37<sup>0</sup> flare or SAE O-ring or NPT as required with minimum failure pressure of 21,000 psi (144,690 kPa). b. Fittings shall be constructed of steel.

# 2.5 Frame and Supports

# c. General

Frame and/or supports shall provide a method for properly securing the grinder in an open channel or wet well. The frame shall allow installation or removal without any disassembly of the frame or grinder.

# D. Components

3, Frame shall be fabricated of 304 stainless steel and include guiderail system, lifting bail and aluminum trash basket.

Frame shall provide proper support and interface to prevent unwanted bypass.

# 2.6 Controller

# A. General

Controller shall provide control of the grinder and power pack and be designed to control one (1) 5 hp motor at 240 volts, 3 phase, 60 Plz. The controller shall have an indicator lights, switches and other control devices.

# B. Components

# 1. Enclosures

- a. Enclosure shall be fiberglass reinforced polyester NEMA 4X FRP.
- b. Enclosure shall house the control devices, motor starters, and PLC.
- 2. Grinder ON-OFF/RESET-REMOTÉ three-position 22mm type, NEMA 4X selector switch
  - a. In the OFF/RESET position, the grinder shall not run.
  - b. In the ON position, the grinder shall run continuously.
  - c. In the REMOTE position, the grinder shall start and stop as controlled by an external device.

# 3. Pilot Lights

- a. Lights shall be LED type 22 mm, rated NEMA4X.
- b. Lights shall indicate POWER ON, RUN, MOTOR OVERLOAD, GRINDER JAMMED, LOW OIL LEVEL, and OIL OVERTEMP.
- 4. Programmable Logic Controller (PLC)
  - a. PLC shall be manufactured by Panasonic.
  - b. PLC shall have a minimum of 16K of memory.

# 5. Motor Starter

- a. Starter shall be a full-voltage reversing type with 120 volt operating coils.
- b. Overload relays shall be adjustable and sized to full load amperes (FLA) of the motor.

# 6. Control Transformer

a. Control transformer shall be minimum 130 VA.

b. Control transformer primary and secondary shall be fused for over current protection.

# C. Performance

- 1. When a grinder obstruction occurs that increases demand pressure above 2,850 psi (19,655 kPa), the controller shall stop the grinder, then reverse the grinder rotation, by activating the solenoid in the directional control valve. If the obstruction is cleared, the controller shall return the grinder and power pack to normal operation. If nine (9) reverses occur within a 45 second interval, the controller shall stop the grinder in a jam condition and activate the GRINDER JAMMED indicator and relay.
  - 2. When a power failure occurs while the grinder is operating, the grinder will resume operation once power is restored.
  - 3. When a power failure occurs while the grinder is in a fail condition, once power is restored the fail indicator shall reactivate and remain until reset.
  - 4. Reset of the grinder shall be accomplished from the controller only.

# 2.7 Spare Parts

(1 each) 30005-0008 & 30005-0012 Spare Renew Grinders with torque motors

# **PART 3 EXECUTION**

# 3.1 Installation

Grinder(s), powerpack(s), and controller(s) shall be installed in accordance with supplier's installation instructions, and in accordance with all OSHA, local, state, and federal codes and regulations.

# 3.2 Testing

Test of grinder(s) shall demonstrate smooth operation and correct rotation. Test period shall demonstrate simulated jam conditions for grinders

# 3.3 Training

A field training course shall be provided for operation and supervisory staff members. Field instruction shall cover items for successful operation contained in the operation & maintenance manuals.

**END OF SECTION** 

# Specifications for Muffin Monster Galloway Township

#### LINE ITEMS

**Line No Qty Part/Description 30005-0018-DI Muffin Monster** 

## 30005-0018 Muffin Monster Scope of supply to include:

- 1 Grinder with 18" cutter stack using 1 1 -tooth cam cutters in alloy steel, optimum cut control gearing, tungsten carbide mechanical seals with BUNA-N elastomers rated for 90 psi, Cork & Rubber gaskets, Tnemec coated housings with Delta-P siderails and hydraulic torque motor.
- 2 1 PP 51-1 TEFC 208-230/460V HYDRAULIC POWER PACK ASSEMBLY, 51-IP TEFC 60HZ 3PH 1.15SF 1750RPM 208-230/460V, 1 TANK, WITH SEAL-LOK FITTINGS FOR USE WITH 4.3GPM TORQUE MOTOR
- 1 1-1/1-1 ASSY Oft, 1/2in QD 1/2" HYDRAULIC HOSE ASSY 60', W/QUICK DISCONNECT TO MOTOR AND STEEL FITTINGS
  - 4 1 POWER PACK STAND AL POWER PACK STAND, 12 <sup>1</sup>1-1, FOR HPC10504 STYLE PIP, W/OUT CONTROLLER, 6061-T4 ALUMINUM
  - 5 1 PC2240-OOO-1-5HP-230V-60HZ
    Model PC2240 motor controller for 230\./ (Schematic Drawing # PC2240-OOO-1-B) in a NEMA 4X fiberglass ENCL. DWG# CB-356. Enclosure accepting 230V/3PH/60HZ input power for use with a 5HP hydraulic motor. Controller includes an IEC starter with over-current protection, one set of spare fuses and micro-PLC. Prog. # PC2240-OOO-A (120VAC control voltage)
  - Framework
    304 stainless steel wall mounting frame with lifting bale, sliderail system and ancillary aluminum trash basket.
  - 7 1 Shipping & Handling
  - 8 1 Start Up

# **Optional**

# **Cutter Replacements**

#### Part # 30005-0012 Renew

## **Description:**

1 1 Tooth Cam Cutters

1:1 Stack Alloy Steel

Buna N Elastomers

Cork & Rubber Gaskets

**Delta-P Siderails** 

Motor Type Hydraulic

Less Motor

Less Reducer

Less Spool

**Grinder SN: TBD** 

Paint: Epoxy Green

# Part # 30005-0008 spare

## **Description:**

1 1 Tooth Cam Cutters

1:1 Stack Alloy Steel

Buna N Elastomers

Cork & Rubber Gaskets

**Delta-P Siderails** 

Motor Type Hydraulic

Less Motor

Less Reducer

Less Spool

**Grinder SN: TBD** 

Paint: Epoxy Green

# **Part # 30005-0018 spare**

## **Description:**

11 Tooth Cam Cutters

1:1 Stack Alloy Steel

Buna N Elastomers

Cork & Rubber Gaskets

Delta-P Siderails

Motor Type Hydraulic

Less Motor

Less Reducer

Less Spool

**Grinder SN: TBD** 

Paint: Epoxy Green

# Section 4 Required Documents to be Submitted with Bid/Proposal

#### BID DOCUMENT SUBMISSTION CHECKLIST

#### Name of Project: Installation of Muffin Monster for the Pump Station #23-002

(Bidders' Initials)

	(B	iuuers	<i>muuus)</i>
X	Bid Document Check List		
X	Proposal Page(s)		
X	Acknowledgment of Receipt of Addenda (If Applicable)		
X	Hold Harmless		
X	Stockholder Disclosure Certification (form must be notarized)		
X	Non-Collusion Affidavit (form must be notarized)		
X	Bidder's Affidavit (this form must be notarized)		
X	List of Subcontractors (form must be notarized)		
X	Disclosure of Investment Activities in Iran		
X	Affirmative Action Compliance Notice		
X	Disclosure Statement		
X	Right to Extend		
X	5 References		
X	W-9		
X	Business Registration Certificate		
X	Proof of General and Automobile Liability Insurance		
X	All required certifications, licenses, and business permit information (If Applicable)		
X	BIDDERS MUST SUBMIT ONE (1) ORIGINAL AND ONE (1) COPY OF ALL REQUIRED DOCUMENTS		

# <u>THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES THE SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS</u> <u>DETAILED HEREIN AND HAS SUBMITTED THE DOCUMENTS LISTED ABOVE.</u>

Name of Bidder:		
By Authorized Representati	ve:	
Signature:	Date:	
Print Name & Title:		

Note: Failure to include notarized Stockholder Disclosure Certification, List of Subcontractors and Acknowledgment of the receipt of Addenda (if any) with your bid/proposal, will be deemed a fatal, non-curable defect.

Name of Bidder:		
30005-0018 DI Muffin Monster	\$	
OPTIONAL CU	TTER REPLACEMENTS	
Part #300005-0012	<u>\$</u>	
Part #300005-0008	<u>\$</u>	
Part #300005-0018	\$	
(Corporate) The undersigned is a (Partnership) under the laws (Individual)	of the State of	having its
Principal office at		
Company	Federal I.D. # or Social S	Security #
		Address
Signature of Authorized Agent	Type or Print Name	
Title of Authorized Agent	Date	
Telephone Number	Email Address	
Fax Number		

## **TOWNSHIP OF GALLOWAY**

#### **ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA**

The undersigned Bidder does hereby acknowledge the receipt of the following Addenda:

ADDENDUM NUMBER	DATE	ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT (Initial)
		<del></del>
Acknowledgement for: _	(Name of Bidder)	
	(Marile of bluder)	
<b>D</b>		
By:	(Signature of the Authorized Represe	entative)
Name:		
	(Please Print or Type)	
Title:		
Date:		
Signatura		
Signature.		
Print name:		

### Township of Galloway

#### Exceptions

All exceptions or deviations must be noted in detail by the bidder in writing. If the exception/deviation is deemed to not be "equal to" or "to exceed" the specified item, by the Township, the bidder will be held to the original specification at no change in cost. Submitting product brochures is not an acceptable claim of equivalent.

(IF <b>NONE</b> , PLEASE STATE)		

# **HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT**

To the fullest extent permitted by law,	shall indemnify, save harmless
and defend the Township of Galloway, its appointed	l officials, its employees, agents,
volunteers and others from and against any and all cla	aims, losses, costs, attorney's fees,
damages, or injury including death and/or property loss,	expense claims or demands arising
out of or caused or alleged to have be caused in any man	ner by a defect in any equipment or
materials supplied under this contract or by the negligent	performance of any work under this
contract, including all suits or actions of every kind	or description brought against the
Township of Galloway, either individually or jointly wit	h for or on
account of any damage or injury to any person or persons	or property, caused or occasioned or
alleged to have been caused by, or on account of, the r	negligent performance of any work
pursuant to or in connection with this contract or the	nrough any negligence or alleged
negligence in safeguarding the work area, or through any	negligent act, omission or fault or
alleged act, omission or fault or alleged act, omission or f	fault of
its employees, subcontractors or agents or others under,	contract.
By:	
Contractor	
Attest	

# STOCKHOLDER DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATION This Statement Shall Be Included with Bid Submission

Name of Business	
I certify that no one stocking the undersigned.  If a corporation owns all of the bid, then the statements.	v contains the names and home addresses of all stockholders issued and outstanding stock of the undersigned.  OR  nolder owns 10% or more of the issued and outstanding stock of or part of the stock of the corporation or partnership submitting ent shall include a list of the stockholders who own 10% or class of that owning corporation. If no one owns 10% or more
Check the box that represents th	e type of business organization:
Partnership Limited Partnership Subchapter S Corporation  Sign and notarize the form beloce  Stockholders:  Name: Home Address:	
Name:	Name:  Home Address:
Name:	Name:
Home Address:	Home Address:

Subscribed and sworn before me this day of, 2	(Affiant)
(Notary Public)	
	(Print name & title of affiant)
My Commission expires:	(Corporate Seal)

End of Stockholder Disclosure Certificate

# **NON COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT**

County of	
l res	iding in
(name of affiant)	iding in(name of municipality)
in the County of	and State of of
full age, being duly sworn according to la	and State of of aw on my oath depose and say that:
I am	of the firm of(name of firm)
(title or position)	(name of firm)
	the bidder making the Proposal for the bid entitled
	, and that I executed the said proposal with full
(title of proposal)	
and in this affidavit are true and correct Galloway relies upon the truth of the state contained in this affidavit in awarding the I further warrant that no person or selective such contract upon an agree brokerage or contingent fee, except bor	lling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or ement or understanding for a commission, percentage na fide employees or bona fide established commercial or
selling agencies maintained by	(name of contractor)
Subscribed and sworn to	
before me this day	Signature
, 2	(Type or print name of affiant under signature)
Notary public of	
My Commission expires	
(Seal)	

## **BIDDER'S AFFIDAVIT**

(This Affidavit is part of the Proposal or Bid)

State of New Jersey	
County of	
being duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she res	sides at
	that he/she is the
	_who signed the
(give title)	
above Proposal or Bid, that he/she was duly author	rized to sign and that the Proposal or Bid is the true offer of
the Bidder, that the seal attached is the seal of	f the Bidder and that all the declarations and statements
contained in the Bid are true to the best of his/her	knowledge and belief.
Subscribed and sworn to before me at	
thisday of 20	
	Signature of Bidder (Seal)
Notary Public	

My Commission Expires

# List of Subcontractors

Please fill out in totality to avoid automatic rejection of bid. In the event any of the below categories are not applicable, please indicate so by inserting "N/A".

I, or we		_
	(Name of Company)	
In compliance with	Section 16 of P.L. 1971, c. 198 (C.40A:11-16), as an	nended by
P.L. 1997, c 408 add	opted January 19, 1998, hereby certify that I/we will e	mploy the
following subcontra	ctors for this project:	
Category of Work		
Name and Address of		
Subcontractor		
Scope of Work		
Amount to be paid for		
this work		
State License #		
Catagory of Wayle		
Category of Work		
Name and Address of		
Subcontractor		
Scope of Work		
Amount to be paid for		
this work		
State License #		

Category of Work			
Name and Address of Subcontractor			
Scope of Work			
Amount to be paid for this work			
State License #			
Category of Work			
Name and Address of Subcontractor			
Scope of Work			
Amount to be paid for this work			
State License #			
		are not applicable, please form will result in a disqua	
	Company Name)	_	
-		(Seal)	
		-	
Title:		_	

End of List of Subcontractors

#### TOWNSHIP OF GALLOWAY

# PROHIBITED RUSSIA-BELARUS ACTIVITIES & IRAN INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES DISCLOSURE.

Bidder:		

# PART 1: CERTIFICATION COMPLETE PART 1 BY CHECKING ONE OF THE THREE BOXES BELOW

Pursuant to law, any person or entity that is a successful bidder or proposer, or otherwise proposes to enter into or renew a contract, for goods or services must complete the certification below prior to contract award to attest, under penalty of perjury, that neither the person or entity, nor any parent entity, subsidiary, or affiliate, is identified on the Department of Treasury's Russia-Belarus list or Chapter 25 list as a person or entity engaging in prohibited activities in Russia, Belarus or Iran. Before a contract for goods or services can be amended or extended, a person or entity must certify that neither the person or entity, nor any parent entity, subsidiary, or affiliate, is identified on the Department of Treasury's Russia-Belarus list. Both lists are found on Treasury's website at the following web addresses:

https://www.nj.gov/treasury/administration/pdf/RussiaBelarusEntityList.pdf. http://www.state.ni.us/treasury/purchase/pdf/Chapter25List.pdf.

As applicable to the type of contract, the above-referenced lists must be reviewed prior to completing the below certifications.

A person or entity unable to make the certification must provide a detailed, accurate, and precise description of the activities of the person or entity, or of a parent entity, subsidiary, or affiliate, engaging in prohibited activities in Russia of Belarus and/or investment activities in Iran. The person or entity must cease engaging in any prohibited activities and provide an updated certification before the contract can be entered into.

If a vendor or contractor is found to be in violation of law, action may be taken as appropriate and as may be provided by law, rule, or contract, including but not limited to imposing sanctions, seeking compliance, recovering damages, declaring the party in default, and seeking debarment or suspension of the party.

#### PLEASE CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX:

#### CONTRACT AWARDS AND RENEWALS

I certify, pursuant to law, that neither the person or entity listed above nor any parent entity, subsidiary, or affiliate appears on the N.J. Department of Treasury's list of entities engaged in prohibited activities in Russia or Belarus pursuant to PL. 2022, c. 3 or in investment activities in Iran pursuant to PL. 2012, c. 25 ("Chapter 25 List"). I further certify that I am the person listed above, or I am an officer or representative of the entity listed above and am authorized to make this certification on its behalf. (Skip Part 2 and sign and complete the Certification below.)

#### CONTRACT AMENDMENTS AND EXTENSIONS.

I certify, pursuant to law, that neither the person or entity listed above nor any parent entity, subsidiary, or affiliate appears on the N.J. Department of Treasury's list of entities engaged in prohibited activities in Russia or Belarus pursuant to PL. 2022, c. 3 or in investment activities in Iran pursuant to PL. 2012, c. 25 ("Chapter 25 List"). I further certify that I am the person listed above, or I am an officer or representative of the entity listed above and am authorized to make this certification on its behalf. (Skip Part 2 and sign and complete the Certification below.)

,

#### . IF UNABLE TO CERTIFY

I am unable to certify as above because the person or entity and/or a parent entity, subsidiary, or affiliate is listed on the Department's Russia-Belarus list and/or Chapter 25 Iran list. I will provide a detailed, accurate, and precise description of the activities as directed in Part 2 below, and sign and complete the Certification below. Failure to provide such will prevent the award of the contract to the person or entity, and appropriate penalties, fines and/or sanctions will be assessed as provided by law.

#### PART 2: Additional Information

# PLEASE PROVIDE FURTHER INFORMATION RELATED TO PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES IN RUSSIA OR BELARUS AND/OR INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES IN IRAN.

You must provide a detailed, accurate and precise description of the activities of the person or entity, or of a parent entity, subsidiary, or affiliate, engaging in prohibited activities in Russia or Belarus and/or investments activities in Iran in the space below and, if needed, on additional sheets provided by you.

#### PART 3: CERTIFICATION OF TRUE AND COMPLET INFORMATION

- I, being duly sworn upon my oath, hereby represent and state that the foregoing information and any attachments there, to the best of my knowledge, are true and complete. I attest that I am authorized to execute this certification on behalf of the above-referenced person or entity.
- I, acknowledge that the Township of Galloway is relying on the information contained herein and hereby acknowledge that I am under a continuing obligation from the date of this certification through the completion of any contracts with the Township of Galloway to notify the Township of Galloway in writing of any changes to the answers of information contained herein.
- I, acknowledge that I am aware that it is a criminal offense to make a false statement or misrepresentation in this certification. If I do so, I recognize that I am subject to criminal prosecution under the law and that it will also constitute a material breach of my agreement(s) with the Township of Galloway and that the Township of Galloway at its option may declare any contract(s) resulting from this certification void and unenforceable.

Full Name (Print):	Signature.	
Title:	Date:	

# AFFIRMATIVE ACTION COMPLIANCE NOTICE N.J.S.A. 10:5-36 and N.J.A.C. 17:27

# GOODS AND SERVICES CONTRACTS (INCLUDING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES)

This form is a summary of the successful bidder's requirement to comply with the requirements of N.J.S.A. 10:5-31 and 17:27.

The successful bidder shall submit to the Township of Galloway, after the notification of award but prior to execution of this contract, one of the following three documents as forms of evidence:

1. A photocopy of a valid letter that the contractor is operating under an existing Federally approved or sanctioned affirmative action program (good for one (1) year from the date of the letter);

OR

2. A photocopy of a Certificate of Employee Information Report approval, issued in accordance with N.J.A.C. 17:27-4;

OR

3. A photocopy of an Employee Information Report (AA302) provided by the Division and distributed to the Township of Galloway to be completed by the contractor in accordance with N.J.A.C. 17:27-4.

The successful vendor may obtain the Affirmative Action Employee Information Report (AA302) from the Township of Galloway during normal business hours.

The successful vendor(s) must submit the copies of the AA302 Report to the Division of Contract Compliance and Equal Employment Opportunity in Public Contracts (Division). The Public Agency copy is submitted to the Township of Galloway, and the vendor retains the vendor copy.

The undersigned vendor certifies that he/she is aware of the commitment to comply with the requirements of N.J.S.A. 10:5-36 and N.J.A.C. 17:27 and agrees to furnish the required forms of evidence.

The undersigned vendor further understands that his/her bid shall be rejected as non-responsive if said contractor fails to comply with the requirements of N.J.S.A. 10:5-36 and N.J.A.C. 17:27.

Company:	Title:
Print Name:	Signature:
Date:	

## **DISCLOSURE STATEMENT**

I warrant that no Director, Officer or Employee of our company has a family member employed by or affiliated with the Township of Galloway.

Name of Bidder:
By authorized Representative:
by authorized Representative.
Signature:
Print Name and Title:
Date:

Please list five (5) references of recent customers who can verify the quality of service your company provides.

## THIS FORM MUST BE RETURNED WITH YOUR PROPOSAL.

	<u>REFERENCE ONE</u>	
Government/Customer		
Address:		
Phone:	Fax:	
Contract Period:	Amount of Contract	
Scope of Work:		
	REFERENCE TWO	
	Fax:	
Contract Period:	Amount of Contract	
Scope of Work:		
	DEFENSE THREE	
Government/Customer		
Address:		
Contact Person and Title:		
Phone:	Fax:	
Contract Period:	Amount of Contract	
Scope of Work:		

	REFERENCE FOUR	
Government/Customer		
Phone:	Fax:	
Contract Period:	Amount of Contract	
Scope of Work:		
	REFERENCE FIVE	
Government/Customer		
Address:		
Contact Person and Title:		
Phone:	Fax:	
Contract Period:	Amount of Contract	
Scope of Work:		

#### RIGHT TO EXTEND – TIME OF AWARD

The Township of Galloway is required by The Local Public Contracts Law, <u>N.J.S.A.</u> 40A:11-24, to make an award on products or service within sixty (60) days of the bid opening date.

Should the Township of Galloway require an additional thirty (30) days extension to make an award of this bid, by signing this document you shall grant the Township of Galloway, NJ the right to extend this award up to ninety (90) days, if deemed necessary.

Name of Bidder:
By authorized Representative:
Signature:
Print Name and Title:
Date:
Type of Product or Service Offered: